
M E N D O C I N O 
Local Agency Formation Commission 

Ukiah Valley Conference Center | 200 South School Street | Ukiah, California 95482 

Telephone: (707) 463-4470 | Fax:  (707) 462-2088 | E-mail:  eo@mendolafco.org | Web: www.mendolafco.org 
 

 
COMMISSIONERS 
Jerry Ward, Chair & Treasurer 
Public Member 
 
Carre Brown, Vice Chair 
County Board of Supervisors 
 
Kevin Doble 
Ukiah City Council 
 
Gerardo Gonzalez 
Willits City Council 
 
Dan Hamburg 
County Board of Supervisors 
 
Theresa McNerlin 
Ukiah Valley Sanitation District 
 
Tony Orth 
Brooktrails Township CSD 
 
Scott Ignacio, Alternate 
Point Arena City Council 
 
John McCowen, Alternate 
County Board of Supervisors 
 
Carol Rosenberg, Alternate 
Public Member 
 
Angela Silver, Alternate 
Calpella County Water District 
 
STAFF 
Executive Officer 
Uma Hinman 
 
Analyst 
Larkyn Feiler 
 
Commission Clerk 
Elizabeth Salomone 

 
Counsel 
Scott Browne 
 
Regular Meetings 
First Monday 
of each month 
at 9:00 AM 
in the Mendocino 
County Board 
of Supervisors Chambers 
501 Low Gap Road 
 

A G E N D A 
Regular Meeting of Monday, October 2, 2017  9:00 AM 

County Board of Supervisors Chambers 501 Low Gap Road, Ukiah, California 
 

Live web streaming and recordings of Commission meetings are available via the County of 
Mendocino’s YouTube Channel. Links to recordings and approved minutes are available on the 

LAFCo website (http://mendolafco.org/recorded-meetings/). 

Staff reports are available online:  http://mendolafco.org/meeting-documents-2017/ 

 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER and ROLL CALL 
 

2. PUBLIC EXPRESSION 
 
The Commission welcomes participation in the LAFCo meeting. Any person may 
address the Commission on any subject within the jurisdiction of LAFCo which is not 
on the agenda. There is a three minute limit and no action will be taken at this meeting. 
Individuals wishing to address the Commission under Public Expression are welcome 
to do so throughout the meeting. 

3. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
The following consent items are expected to be routine and non-controversial, and will 
be acted on by the Commission in a single action without discussion, unless a request is 
made by a Commissioner or a member of the public for discussion or separate action. 

4a) Approval of the August 7, 2017 Regular Meeting Summary Minutes 
4b) Approval of the August 2017 Claims and Financial Report 
4c) Approval of the September 2017 Claims and Financial Report 
4d) Approval of Resolution No 2017-18-01 Correcting the Final Map for the 

North of Ten Mile Annexation to Fort Bragg Rural Fire Protection 
District  

 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS – None 
 
 
 

 (10-2-17 Agenda Continued…) 

 

  

10/2/17 Packet Page1 of 58

mailto:eo@mendolafco.org
http://www.mendolafco.org/
http://mendolafco.org/recorded-meetings/
http://mendolafco.org/meeting-documents-2017/


 

 

(Page 2, 10-2-17 Agenda)  

 
6. WORKSHOP ITEMS  

Workshops are scheduled for Commission review of draft reports prior to the noticing for public hearing. 
Questions and comments from the Commission, participating agencies, and members of the public are 
welcome. Documents are available for review at: http://mendolafco.org/meeting-documents-2017/. 
 
6a) Public Workshop for Elk Community Services District Draft Sphere of Influence (SOI) Update 

The Commission will review a Draft SOI Update for the Elk Community Services District. The 
Commission is invited to discuss the draft report and provide feedback to staff in anticipation of receiving 
a final SOI Update for formal action as part of a public hearing at a future meeting. No action will be 
taken by the Commission as part of this item. Documents are available for review at 
http://mendolafco.org/meeting-documents-2017/. 
 

7. MATTERS FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
The Policy and Procedures Committee proposals for adoption of the following draft policies: 
 
7a) Annual Legislative Platform Development for 2017 
7b) Annexation Tax Negotiations Procedures Update 
7c) Budget Adjustment Policy 
 

8. INFORMATION AND REPORT ITEMS 
The following informational items are reports on current LAFCo activities, communications, studies, 
legislation, and special projects. General direction to staff for future action may be provided by the 
Commission. 

 
8a) Work Plan, Current and Future Proposals (Written) 
8b) Correspondence (copies provided upon request) 

 SDRMA President’s Special Acknowledgement Award received 
8c) Executive Officer’s Report (Verbal) 
8d) Committee Reports (Verbal) 

 Policies and Procedures Meeting (September 14, 2017) 
8e) Commissioner Reports, Comments or Questions (Verbal) 

 Upper Russian River Water Agency (JPA) Update 
8f) CALAFCO Business and Legislative Report 

 Little Hoover Commission Report 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

The next Regular Commission Meeting is scheduled for  
Monday, November 6, 2017 at 9:00 AM 

 in the County Board of Supervisors Chambers 501 Low Gap Road, Ukiah, California 
 

Notes: Participation on LAFCo Matters 
All persons are invited to testify and submit written comments to the Commission on public hearing items.  Any challenge to a LAFCo action in Court 
may be limited to issues raised at a public hearing or submitted as written comments prior to the close of the public hearing. 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Compliance: If you are a disabled person and need a disability-related modification or accommodation to 
participate in a meeting, please contact the LAFCo office at 707-463-4470, by e-mail to eo@mendolafco.org, or by FAX to 707-462-2088.  Requests 
must be made as early as possible, and at least two full business days prior to the meeting. 
Fair Political Practice Commission (FPPC) Notice: State Law requires that a participant in LAFCo proceedings who has a financial interest in a 
Commission decision, and who has made a campaign contribution of more than $250 to any Commissioner in the past 12-months, must disclose the 
contribution.  If you are affected, please notify the Commission prior to the agenda item. 

10/2/17 Packet Page2 of 58

http://mendolafco.org/meeting-documents-2017/
http://mendolafco.org/meeting-documents-2017/
mailto:eo@mendolafco.org


M E N D O C I N O 
Local Agency Formation Commission 

Ukiah Valley Conference Center | 200 South School Street | Ukiah, California 95482 

Telephone: (707) 463-4470 | Fax:  (707) 462-2088 | E-mail:  eo@mendolafco.org | Web: www.mendolafco.org 
 

Commission Minutes Page 1 of 5 August 7, 2017  

COMMISSIONERS 
Jerry Ward, Chair & Treasurer 
Public Member 
 
Carre Brown, Vice Chair 
County Board of Supervisors 
 
Kevin Doble 
Ukiah City Council 
 
Gerardo Gonzalez 
Willits City Council 
 
Dan Hamburg 
County Board of Supervisors 
 
Theresa McNerlin 
Ukiah Valley Sanitation District 
 
Tony Orth 
Brooktrails Township CSD 
 
Scott Ignacio, Alternate 
Point Arena City Council 
 
John McCowen, Alternate 
County Board of Supervisors 
 
Carol Rosenberg, Alternate 
Public Member 
 
Angela Silver, Alternate 
Calpella County Water District 
 
STAFF 
Executive Officer 
Uma Hinman 
 
Analyst 
Larkyn Feiler 
 
Commission Clerk 
Elizabeth Salomone 

 
Counsel 
Scott Browne 
 
Regular Meetings 
First Monday 
of each month 
at 9:00 AM 
in the Mendocino 
County Board 
of Supervisors Chambers 
501 Low Gap Road 
 

Agenda Item No. 4a 
  

MINUTES 
Local Agency Formation Commission 

of Mendocino County 
 

Regular Meeting of Monday, August 7, 2017 
 

County Board of Supervisors Chambers, 501 Low Gap Road, Ukiah, California 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER and ROLL CALL  
 
Chair Ward called the meeting to order at 9:02am. 
 

Members Present: Commissioners Carre Brown, Kevin Doble, Gerardo 
Gonzalez, Dan Hamburg, , Tony Orth, and Jerry Ward 

 

Members Absent: Commissioners  Theresa McNerlin 
 

Alternate Members Present: Commissioners John McCowen (departed 10:25am) and 
Carol Rosenberg 

 

Alternate Members Absent: Commissioners Scott Ignacio and Angela Silver 

 

Staff Present: Uma Hinman, Executive Officer 
  Elizabeth Salomone, Clerk 
 
PUBLIC EXPRESSION (Video Time: 2:34) 
 
1. Public Expression 
 
Tamara Alaniz, General Manager of the Russian River Flood Control and Water 
Conservation Improvement District (RRFC) and the Upper Russian River Water 
Agency Joint Powers of Authority (URRWA JPA), and Willits resident, addressed the 
Commission. Mrs. Alaniz thanked the Commission for the recent Brown Act & Ethics 
Training provided through County Counsel and LAFCo sponsorship, expressing 
interest in future trainings.  
 
Lee Howard, County resident, addressed the Commission expressing concerns 
regarding the potential project proposal for consolidation of five water districts in the 
Ukiah Valley. 

 
 

 
  
 
 

10/2/17 Packet Page3 of 58

mailto:eo@mendolafco.org
http://www.mendolafco.org/


 

 

Commission Minutes Page 2 of 5 August 7, 2017  

 
CONSENT CALENDAR (Video Time: 8:15) 
Items 2-6 were pulled from the Consent Calendar for discussion. 
Commissioner Brown requested consideration of a more standard template for the agenda and minutes. 
 
2. Approval of the May 1, 2017 Regular Meeting Summary Minutes 

The following comments and edits were noted for the May 1, 2017 meeting: 

 Commissioner Hamburg verified the edits requested at the June 5, 2017 meeting were incorporated. 

 Page 4 of 7, Item 7 motion to read “…and staff were directed to schedule a public hearing….” 

 Page 5 of 7, Item 10 should read “…and Councilperson Assembly Member Woods.” 
 

3. Approval of the June 5, 2017 Regular Meeting Summary Minutes 
The following comments and edits were noted for the May 1, 2017 meeting: 

 Page 2 of 5, Item 3 Claims, clarification on “County Counsel Training” as Brown Act & Ethics 
training conducted by County Counsel. 

 Page 3 of 5, Item 6 first line needs clarification regarding the opening of the public hearing. 
 

4. Approval of the June 2017 Claims  
 June 2017 claims totaling:   $17,582.51 
 Uma Hinman Consulting:   $ 11,126.46 
 Ukiah Valley Conference Center:  $     474.94 
 P. Scott Browne:  $     500.00 
 Commission Reimbursements:  $     178.08 
 County of Mendocino, audio/video & GIS  $     208.96 
 Newspapers (public hearing notices)  $     370.99 
 CALFACO   $     899.00 
 Pacific Internet  $     979.08 
 Anderson Valley Ambulance Services, adjustment of fees  $  2,845.00 

 
5. Approval of the July 2017 Claims  
 July 2017 claims totaling:   $12,263.73 
 Uma Hinman Consulting:   $  9,671.25 
 Ukiah Valley Conference Center:  $     442.48 
 P. Scott Browne:  $     600.00 
 Pehling & Pehling CPA:  $  1,550.00 

 
6. Approval of the County of Mendocino Information Services Contract Renewal (Standard Services Agreement 

No. EO 17-66) 
It was noted the contract language is standard with no changes from last contract. The rate increases were 
discussed. 

7. Approval of the Pehling & Pehling, CPA Contract for FY 2016-17 Audit 
8. Savings Bank of Mendocino Authorized Signatures Update for Checking Account 

Upon motion by Commissioner Brown and second by Commissioner Gonzalez, Consent Calendar Items 2-8 
were approved with noted changes by roll call vote: 

 
Ayes:  (6) Brown, Doble, Gonzalez, Hamburg, Orth, and Ward 
Absent:  (1) McNerlin 

  

10/2/17 Packet Page4 of 58



 

 

Commission Minutes Page 3 of 5 August 7, 2017  

 
WORKSHOP ITEMS 
 
9. Workshop for Comptche Community Service District (CSD) Sphere of Influence Update (Video Time: 19:45) 

EO Hinman presented with thanks to Comptche CSD staff, including Michael Schaeffer, for their assistance. 
Comments and questions were offered by Commissioners Brown, McCowen, Doble, Hamburg, Orth, Ward, 
and Gonzalez. 
  
 Items for staff to address: 

 Update on Table 2-2, MSR Determinations #8, Financial Ability of Agency to Provide Services. 

 Map expanded to show adjoining district’s boundaries and out of district service areas, if possible. 

 More current financial information, including annual financial reviews, County Prop 172 and a 
fundraising line item. 

 Possible boundary issues, with regards to access, noted for next MSR update. 

 Notation of the out of district service areas addressed in the final multi-district document introduction. 

 Note the formation of Mendocino Fire District Association working to identify additional revenue 
sources for fire services within Mendocino County. 

 
10. Public Workshop for the City of Fort Bragg Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update 

(Video Time: 45:30) 
EO Hinman presented with thanks to Fort Bragg staff Linda Ruffing, City Manager, and Marie Jones, 
Community Development Director, and introduced Scott Perkins, Associate Planner in the Community 
Development Department, in the audience. Comments and questions were offered by Commissioners 
McCowen and Orth. 

 
Items for staff to address: 

 Clarify the discrepancy between the City of Fort Bragg Sphere of Influence boundary and the Fort 
Bragg Municipal Improvement District No. 1 boundary south of the City limits. 

 Review verbiage throughout document for characterization and value statements. 

 Include a consolidated list of the capital improvement projects referenced throughout the document. 
 
Commissioner Orth asked for the following comments from Scott Perkins, City of Fort Bragg, to be entered 
into the record: There are water and sewer services provided in the Noyo Harbor District by the City of Fort 
Bragg, the City has members on the Harbor District Commission, and there are no current plans by the City 
of Fort Bragg, the Noyo Harbor District, or the Harbor Commission to improve or expand infrastructure 
within the Noyo Harbor District, which would prevent increased infrastructure demand within the harbor 
including off shore oil development. 

 
MATTERS FOR DISCUSSION & POSSIBLE ACTION 
 
11. Draft Legislative Policy (Video Time 57:20) 

EO Hinman presented. Comments and questions were offered by Commissioners McCowen, Brown, Orth, 
and Hamburg.  
 
Upon motion by Commissioner Brown and second by Commissioner Gonzalez, the proposed legislative 
policy was approved by unanimous vote: 

Ayes:  (6) Brown, Doble, Gonzalez, Hamburg, Orth, and Ward 
Absent:  (1) McNerlin 

  

10/2/17 Packet Page5 of 58



 

 

Commission Minutes Page 4 of 5 August 7, 2017  

10:05am – 10:14am Chair Ward called a short break. 
 

 
12. CALAFCO Business and Legislation Report (Video Time 1:06:03) 

 CALAFCO Letter of support request for SB 448: Edits to the draft letter were noted, including copies 
sent to Senator McGuire and Assembly Member Wood.   

 CALAFCO Letter of opposition ratification for AB 1361: Upon motion by Commissioner Orth and 
second by Commissioner Brown, the support letter for SB 448, as amended, was approved and the 
opposition letter for AB 1361 was ratified by unanimous vote: 

Ayes:  (6) Brown, Doble, Gonzalez, Hamburg, Orth, and Ward 
Absent:  (1) McNerlin 

 CALAFCO 2017 Conference Sand Diego, October 25-27; early registration deadline August 31 
Participation was discussed. 

 CALAFCO 2017 / 2018 Board of Directors Nominations, due September 
No Mendocino LAFCo Commissioners were nominated. 

 CALFACO 2017 Annual Achievement Awards nominations open; due August 31 
Nominations were discussed and none were offered during the meeting. 

 CALFACO Quarterly Report was included in the packet. 

 CALFACO Legislative Update (AB 464 Chaptered) was included in the packet. 
 
 
INFORMATION/ REPORT ITEMS 

 
13. Status of Applications, Future Projects, MSR and SOI Updates (Video Time: 1:23:09) 
 

Current Projects: 

 City of Ukiah Detachment of Ukiah Valley Sanitation District (UVSD) Served Areas has no progress to report. 

 Fort Bragg Rural Fire Protection District, North of 10 Mile Annexation is now complete. 
Future Projects: 

 Anderson Valley Community Service District activation of Latent Powers to Provide Water and Sewer Services application 
is expected to be received within the next 2-3 months. 

 Millview County Water District Annexation is pending a pre-application, including the Nicolls Annexation. 
MSR/SOI Updates 

 Elk Community Services District SOI update workshop is expected for the next regular meeting. Other fire 
districts are moving forward. 

 City of Willits MSR/SOI update continues to make progress. 

 Brooktrails CSD MSR/SOI update is underway. 

 Fire District SOIs are continuing; however, fire season is causing delays. 
 

14. Correspondence (Video Time: 1:26:39) 
Comments were offered by Commissioner Ward. 

 
15. Executive Officer’s Report: (Video Time: 1:27:34) 

No comments were offered by Commissioners. 
 
16. Committee Reports (Video Time: 1:27:46) 

The Policies & Procedures Committee met July 31, 2017 and presented during Item 11. 
Executive Committee meeting scheduled for directly after August 7 Regular meeting.  

 

10/2/17 Packet Page6 of 58



 

 

Commission Minutes Page 5 of 5 August 7, 2017  

 
17. Commissioners Reports, Comments or Questions (Video Time: 1:28:06) 

EO Hinman is scheduled to meet with the Upper Russian River Water Agency Joint Powers of Authority 
General Manager in September for an update. 
 
Commissioner Brown offered information on the Potter Valley Project relicensing.  
 

18. Legislation Report (Video Time: 1:32:45) 
No reports. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
  
There being no further business, at 10:40am the meeting was adjourned.  The next regular meeting is scheduled 
for Monday, September 11, 2017 at 9:00am in the County Board of Supervisors Chambers at 501 Low Gap Road, 
Ukiah, California. 
 

Live web streaming and recordings of Commission meetings are now available via the County of Mendocino’s YouTube Channel. Links to 
recordings and approved minutes are also available on the LAFCo website. June 5, 2017 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=FH8UrdXtIkA 

10/2/17 Packet Page7 of 58

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=FH8UrdXtIkA


 Agenda Item No. 4b 

MENDOCINO 
Local Agency Formation Commission 

 

Staff Report 

DATE:   October 2, 2017 

TO:  Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission 

FROM: Uma Hinman, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Financial Report and Claims for August 2017 
 

Claims  The following claims are recommended for payment authorization:  

Name Account Description Amount Total

5300 Basics Services 7,742.50$         

6200 Bookkeeping 10.50$             

7001 MSRs 1,332.50$         

7501 SOI Updates 587.50$           

5601 Office Supplies 50.00$             

6750 Travel & Lodging Expenses 533.80$           

6800 Conference Registrations 2,125.50$         

8017 Millview CWD Pre Application 517.50$           

5502 Office space 404.00$           

5503 Work room 30.00$             

5603 Photocopy - (April and May) 44.40$             

5605 Postage - (April and May) 1.84$              

6300 Legal Counsel 600.00$           

Monthly flat fee (August 2017)

6740 In-County Travel & Stipends:

Rosenberg (August 2017) 51.08$             

McNerlin (Absent August 2017) -

Orth (August 2017) 77.00$             

Silver (Absent August 2017) -$                

6000 Video Recording of Meetings -$                

7501 GIS Mapping 273.52$           

 $   14,381.64 

Commissioner Reimbursements  $       128.08 

County of Mendocino

Total:

 $       273.52 

Hinman & Associates  $   12,899.80 

Ukiah Valley Conf. Center  $       480.24 

P. Scott Browne  $       600.00 

Notes: None 
Other Financial Activity: 
8/24/17 $1,500 deposit received for the Millview County Water District Pre-application. 
 
Attachments:  Budget Track Spreadsheet 
  Hinman & Associates Consulting Invoice & Scott Browne Invoice 

 
Please note that copies of all invoices, bank statements, and petty cash register were forwarded to Commission Treasurer. 
 
  

10/2/17 Packet Page8 of 58



Agenda Item No. 4c 

MENDOCINO 
Local Agency Formation Commission 

 

Staff Report 

DATE:  October 2, 2017 

TO:  Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission 

FROM: Uma Hinman, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Financial Report and Claims for September 2017 
 

Claims  The following claims are recommended for payment authorization:  

Name Account Description Amount Total

5300 Basics Services 4,286.25$         

6200 Bookkeeping 819.00$            

7001 MSRs 1,155.50$         

7501 SOI Updates 218.75$            

5601 Office Supplies 50.00$              

8017 MCWD Pre-Application 972.50$            

5502 Office space 404.00$            

5503 Work room 30.00$              

5603 Photocopy - TBA

5605 Postage - TBA

6300 Legal Counsel 600.00$            

Monthly flat fee 

6000 Video Recording of Meetings 259.02$            

7501 GIS Mapping 298.38$            

 $     9,093.40 

TBA: Invoice due to be received after agenda packet distribution but before meeting. 
Revised total will be provided verbally by staff during the meeting.

Hinman & Associates Consulting  $     7,502.00 

Ukiah Valley Conf. Center  $        434.00 

P. Scott Browne  $        600.00 

County of Mendocino

Total:

 $        557.40 

Notes: 
 none 

Other Financial Activity: 
 none 
 
Attachments:  Budget Track Spreadsheet 
  H&A Invoice, Scott Browne Invoice  

 
Please note that copies of all invoices, bank statements, and petty cash register were forwarded to Commission Treasurer. 
 

10/2/17 Packet Page9 of 58



Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission

FY 2017-18 Budget and Application Tract

Acct # Task FY 16-17 Budget July August Sept
1st Qtr 

Subtotals
Year to Date

Remaining

Budget

EXPENSES

5300 Basic Services - EO/Analyst/Clerk $66,815 $3,514.25 $7,742.50 $4,286.25 $15,543.00 $15,543.00 $51,272.00

5500 Rent $5,360 $434.00 $434.00 $434.00 $1,302.00 $1,302.00 $4,058.00

5600 Office Expenses $3,350 $58.48 $96.24 $50.00 $204.72 $204.72 $3,145.28

5700 Internet & Website Costs $1,300 $0.00 $0.00 $1,300.00

5900 Publication & Legal Notices $2,000 $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00

6000 Televising Meetings $3,000 $0.00 $259.02 $259.02 $259.02 $2,740.98

6100 Audit Services $3,100 $1,550.00 $1,550.00 $1,550.00 $1,550.00

6200 Bookkeeping $4,800 $784.50 $10.50 $819.00 $1,614.00 $1,614.00 $3,186.00

6300 Legal Counsel (S Browne) $7,200 $600.00 $600.00 $600.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $5,400.00

6400 A-87 Costs County Services $1,100 $0.00 $0.00 $1,100.00

6500 Insurance - General Liability $1,000 $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00

6600 Memberships (CALAFCO/CSDA) $2,200 $0.00 $0.00 $2,200.00

6670 GIS Contract with County $5,000 $273.52 $298.38 $571.90 $571.90 $4,428.10

6740 In-County Travel & Stipends $2,000 $0.00 $128.08 $128.08 $128.08 $1,871.92

6750 Travel & Lodging Expenses $4,000 $533.80 $0.00 $533.80 $533.80 $3,466.20

6800 Conferences (Registrations) $3,000 $2,125.50 $2,125.50 $2,125.50 $874.50

7000 Work Plan (MSRs and SOIs) $45,000 $5,322.50 $1,920.00 $1,374.25 $8,616.75 $8,616.75 $36,383.25

Monthly/ Year to Date Totals $160,225.00 $12,263.73 $13,864.14 $8,120.90 $34,248.77 $34,248.77 $125,976.23

APPLICATIONS DEPOSIT July August Sept
1st Qtr 

Subtotals
Year to Date

Remaining

Budget

A-2009-8001 Irish Beach WD Moores Annexation $-610.56 $0.00 $0.00 $-610.56

P-2014-8010 City of Ukiah Detachment of UVCSD lands $1,532.75 $0.00 $0.00 $1,532.75

P-2017-8017 Millview CWD Annexation $1,500.00 $517.50 $972.50 $0.00 $1,490.00 $10.00

Applications to Date Totals $922.19 $0.00 $517.50 $972.50 $1,490.00 $0.00

EXPENSES AND APPLICATION  TOTALS $12,263.73 $14,381.64 $9,093.40 $35,738.77 $34,248.77

Operations (Checking) Account Balance 33,285.40$           as of 8/31/17 statement

Legal Reserve Balance 50,000.00$           as of 8/31/17 statement

Operations Reserve Balance 40,249.74$           as of 8/31/17 statement

10/2/17 Packet Page10 of 58



Agenda Item No. 4d 

MENDOCINO 
Local Agency Formation Commission 

 

Staff Report 

DATE:  October 2, 2017 

TO:  Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission 

FROM: Uma Hinman, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2017-18-01 Correcting the Final Map for the North of Ten Mile 
Annexation to Fort Bragg Rural Fire Department 

 
 
Background 

The Fort Bragg Rural Fire Protection District North of Ten Mile Annexation final map was 
approved by the Commission on May 6, 2014 (LAFCo Resolution No. 12-13-04). The map was 
submitted and accepted by the Board of Equalization on July 9, 2014. Later discussions with County 
GIS and Surveyor identified errors on the final map consisting of several erroneous notes on the 
map and a section of misidentified District boundary lines. The errors have been corrected and a 
corrective resolution and the final map is attached. No change to the Board of Equalization map will 
be necessary.  

In fixing the map, no changes to the terms and conditions of annexation approval will be necessary. 
By adopting a corrective resolution for the new map, the administrative record will be clear and 
complete. 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends the Commission approve and adopt Resolution No. 2017-18-01 correcting the 
final map for the North of Ten Mile Annexation to Fort Bragg Rural Fire Department.  

 

Attachments 

a) Resolution 12-13-04  
b) Draft Resolution 2017-18-01 

10/2/17 Packet Page11 of 58



10/2/17 Packet Page12 of 58



10/2/17 Packet Page13 of 58



10/2/17 Packet Page14 of 58



10/2/17 Packet Page15 of 58



10/2/17 Packet Page16 of 58



10/2/17 Packet Page17 of 58



10/2/17 Packet Page18 of 58



10/2/17 Packet Page19 of 58



10/2/17 Packet Page20 of 58



10/2/17 Packet Page21 of 58



10/2/17 Packet Page22 of 58



10/2/17 Packet Page23 of 58



10/2/17 Packet Page24 of 58



10/2/17 Packet Page25 of 58



LAFCo Resolution No. 17-18-01 October 2, 2017   

Resolution No. 17-18-01 
of the Local Agency Formation Commission of Mendocino County 

Approving the 
Corrected Annexation Map for the North of Ten Mile River Annexation to the 

Fort Bragg Rural Fire Protection District  
 

LAFCo File No. A-2012-8004 
 

WHEREAS, the North of Ten Mile River Annexation to the Fort Bragg Rural Fire Protection 
District was approved subject to terms and conditions set forth in Mendocino LAFCo Resolution No. 12-13-
04 adopted on May 6, 2013 and attached hereto; and 

 
WHEREAS, the North of Ten Mile River Annexation to the Fort Bragg Rural Fire Protection 

District was ordered by the Commission on September 3, 2013 following a protest hearing in Fort Bragg, 
California on July 31, 2013; and 

 
WHEREAS, a Certificate of Completion (Document 2014-06683) was filed with the Mendocino 

County Recorder on June 12, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Equalization acknowledged submittal of complete and accurate 

documentation of the annexation on July 9, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County of Mendocino subsequently identified base map notes and boundary lines 

on the approved map that erroneously identified several parcels as falling within the District’s previously 
existing boundaries (APNs 015-140-85, 015-140-022, and 015-140-87); and 

 
WHEREAS, the map corrections are made to the base mapping and do not alter the area of 

annexation, and therefore no map correction with the Board of Equalization is necessary; and 
 
WHEREAS, the map corrections are necessary to ensure an accurate administrative record for 

Mendocino LAFCo, the County of Mendocino, and the Fort Bragg Rural Fire Protection District; and. 
 
WHEREAS, the boundary of the annexation territory and existing District boundary is correctly 

defined in map form attached hereto as Exhibit A, and by legal description attached hereto as Exhibit B. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Local Agency Formation Commission of Mendocino County does 
hereby RESOLVE, DETERMINE, and ORDER as follows: 

 
1. The terms and conditions of the LAFCo Resolution 12-13-04 approving the North of Ten Mile River 

Annexation remain in effect and no changes to the adopted conditions and terms of approval are 
necessary. 

 
2. The corrected annexation map is hereby approved as shown in Exhibit A and Exhibit B, attached 

hereto, and replaces the annexation map dated May 2013 and attached to Resolution No. 12-13-04. 
 
The foregoing Resolution was passed and duly adopted at a regular meeting of the Mendocino Local Agency 
Formation Commission held on this 2nd day of October 2017, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSTAIN:  
ABSENT:  

ATTEST:          _____________________________ 
    GERALD WARD, Chair 

_____________________________ 
UMA HINMAN, Executive Officer 
 

10/2/17 Packet Page26 of 58



10/2/17 Packet Page27 of 58



10/2/17 Packet Page28 of 58



Agenda Item No. 6a 

MENDOCINO 
Local Agency Formation Commission 

 

Staff Report 

DATE:  October 2, 2017 

TO:  Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission 

FROM: Uma Hinman, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Workshop for Elk Community Services District Draft Sphere of Influence Update 
 

 
Background 
This is a workshop to introduce the Draft Sphere of Influence (SOI) Update for the Elk Community 
Services District (ECSD). The ECSD was part of the Multi-District Fire Protection Services 
Municipal Service Review (MSR), which the Commission adopted on April 4, 2016. This report 
includes informational updates to the MSR that support the SOI analysis, recommendation, and 
determinations.  
 
The ECSD is the governing agency for the 501(c)(3) Elk Volunteer Fire Department. The ECSD 
provides fire, rescue, emergency medical services, and basic life support services. The District’s 
boundary area is approximately 57 square miles and is generally located along the coastline between 
the Navarro River/Highway 128 and the community of Irish Beach. The District’s SOI is 
coterminous with the District boundary and was established by LAFCo on October 4, 1993, along 
with other special districts providing fire service in Mendocino County (LAFCo Resolution No. 93-
4).  
 
The financial table (Table 1-1) of the attached SOI Update have been updated with information 
from the State Controller’s Annual Financial Reports data. Additionally, a number of updates to the 
2016 adopted MSR determinations are provided.  
 
The District has requested a modification to the existing SOI consisting of 13 parcels that lie directly 
adjacent to the District’s northern boundary/SOI (Areas A and B in Figure 1 of the attached Draft 
SOI document). The SOI Update recommends the Commission consider inclusion of Areas A and 
B in the District’s SOI.  
 
SOI Update for Multiple Fire Protection Service Providers 
To assist in preparing a Multi-District Fire SOI Update, staff mailed a Request for Information 
(RFI) to the following fourteen fire protection service providers in September 2016 and received a 
response from Comptche, Elk, Leggett Valley, Long Valley, South Coast, Albion-Little River, and 
Little Lake. Staff is in the process of following up with all the fire districts to re-engage them in the 
process and to receive information in order to prepare the SOI Updates and move forward with 
scheduling items for workshop and public hearing. 
  

10/2/17 Packet Page29 of 58



 
1. Albion-Little River Fire Protection District 
2. Comptche Community Services District (Workshop completed) 
3. Covelo Fire Protection District 
4. Elk Community Services District 
5. Hopland Fire Protection District 
6. Leggett Valley Fire Protection District 
7. Little Lake Fire Protection District (Workshop completed) 
8. Long Valley Fire Protection District 
9. Mendocino Fire Protection District 
10. Piercy Fire Protection District 
11. Potter Valley Community Services District 
12. Redwood Valley-Calpella Fire Protection District 
13. South Coast Fire Protection District 
14. Ukiah Valley Fire Protection District 

 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends the Commission hold a workshop on the Draft SOI Update, provide comments 
and requested revisions, and direct staff to notice the matter for public hearing once SOI Updates 
are completed for multiple fire protection service providers in order to bring them together for 
consideration.  
 
Attachments:  
(1) Elk Community Services District Draft Sphere of Influence Update 
 

10/2/17 Packet Page30 of 58



 

 

 

Workshop Draft 
 

 

 

ELK  

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 

 

Sphere of Influence Update 
 

 

 

Prepared for:  

MENDOCINO LAFCO 

200 South School Street 

Ukiah, California 95482 

 http://www.mendolafco.org/  

 

 

 

 

 

October 2, 2017 
 

  

10/2/17 Packet Page31 of 58

http://www.mendolafco.org/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank] 

 

 

 

 

 

10/2/17 Packet Page32 of 58



SOI Update | Fire Districts 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1 ELK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT ......................................................................................................... 1-2 

1.1 INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................................................ 1-2 
1.2 DETERMINATIONS .................................................................................................................................... 1-2 

1.2.1 SPHERE OF INFLUENCE ........................................................................................................................ 1-2 
1.2.3 OUT-OF-AREA SERVICES ....................................................................................................................... 1-4 
1.2.4 AREAS OF INTEREST ............................................................................................................................. 1-4 
1.2.5 MSR UPDATE ........................................................................................................................................ 1-4 
1.2.6 SOI RECOMMENDATION ...................................................................................................................... 1-8 

2 REFERENCES ............................................................................................................................................... 2-1 

3 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS ............................................................................................................................... 3-1 

3.1 ASSISTANCE AND SUPPORT ...................................................................................................................... 3-1 

4 APPENDICES ............................................................................................................................................... 4-1 

 

 

 

  

10/2/17 Packet Page33 of 58



 

Chapter 1 – Elk Community Services District                     Page 1-2   

 

1 ELK COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

1.1 INTRODUCTION 
LAFCo prepares a Municipal Service Review (MSR) prior to or in conjunction with the Sphere of Influence 

(SOI) Update process. The SOI Update considers whether a change to a district sphere, or probable future 

boundary, is warranted to plan the logical and orderly development of a district in a manner that supports 

CKH Law and the Policies of the Commission. This SOI Update and associated determinations is prepared 

pursuant to California Government Code §56425(e).  

The Commission approved the Multi-District Fire Protection Services Municipal Service Review on April 4, 

2016, which provides the analysis for the Elk Community Services District (ECSD) addressed by this SOI 

Update. This previously approved MSR and associated determinations form the basis of information for 

this SOI Update. To ensure the Commission has the most updated information for consideration, the MSR 

determinations were reviewed and updates provided in the relevant sections as appropriate.  

1.2 DETERMINATIONS  

1.2.1 SPHERE OF INFLUENCE 

The Sphere of Influence (SOI) for Elk Community Services District (ECSD) was established in October 1993 
when Mendocino LAFCo and the Mendocino County Board of Supervisors adopted resolutions 
establishing the Mendocino County Fire Districts’ Spheres of Influence (LAFCo Resolution No. 93-4). The 
ECSD is the governing agency for the 501(c)(3) Elk Volunteer Fire Department (EVFD). The ECSD is centered 
on the unincorporated community of Elk and provides fire, rescue, Emergency Medical Services (EMS), 
and Basic Life Support (BLS) ambulance services along the Highway 1 corridor. The District is also 
responsible for the Cameron Road and Philo-Greenwood Road area, and Cliff Ridge Road. The District’s 
SOI is coterminous with the District boundary. 

The Elk Community Services District comprises 57 square miles (approximately 36,527 acres). The District 
is located adjacent to the Pacific Ocean between State Route 128 and the Navarro River on the north, and 
the community of Irish Beach on the south. State Highway 1 traverses the District in a north-south 
direction adjacent to the Coast for approximately 15-miles, and is the primary transportation route in the 
area. ECSD is bordered by the Albion-Little River Fire Protection District on the north; Anderson Valley 
Community Services District to the east; and Redwood Coast Fire Protection District to the south. The 
District extends ten miles inland from the Coast where it adjoins Anderson Valley Community Services 
District. 
 
Elk Community Services District is a member of the Zone 4, Planning Mutual Aid Association, which 
includes Albion-Little River Fire Protection District, Fort Bragg Rural Fire Protection District, Mendocino 
Fire Protection District, Westport Volunteer Fire Department, and Comptche Community Services District.  
  

10/2/17 Packet Page34 of 58



CAMERON RD

NAVARRO RIDGE RD

PHILO-GREENWOOD RD

FLYNN CREEK RD

ALBIONRIDGE
RD

MIDDLE RIDGE RD

KINNEY RD

CLIFF RID GE RD

NAVARR O RIVER RD

BALD HILLS RD

APPIAN WY

MA
SONITE INDUSTRIAL RD

OWL CREEK RD

TRAM WY

SEA BISCUIT DR

BONEE RD

AL TA MESA RD

GSC HW E ND RD

HILLCREST DR

CHAROLAISE DR

AP
PA

LOOSA WY

AP
PIA

N WY

Navarro R ive r

A lder Creek

Greenwood Creek

Elk Creek

M ills Creek

B ig Salmon Creek

Flynn Creek

Flume Gulch

Irish Gulch

Ra
y Gu

lch

Soda Fork

Mallo Pass Creek

Perr
y Gulch

Marsh Gulch

John Creek

S oda Creek

Hazel Gulch

North Fork Navarro River

Nye Creek

Railroad Gulch

Tin Can Creek

Murray Gulch

Rolle r Gulch

Laure l Gulch

Little Salmon Creek
Sartori Gulch

Sulphur Fork

John Smith Creek

Tank Gulch

Ketty Gulch

Dutch Henry Creek

Cook Creek

Coon Creek

Gulch Six

Floodgate Creek

Russian Gulch
Marsh Creek

Musta
rd

Gulch

Mill Creek

Tramway Gulch

Camp Sixteen Gulch

Bee Tree Creek

Russ Gulch
Donne

lly

Gulch

Deer Creek

South Fork Albion Riv er

Wolfey Gulch

Th
ree

Springs Creek

Mud Gulch

White Gulch No
rth

Bra
nch

North
Fork Navarro River

Dead Horse Gulch

N iemela Gulch

Bonee Gulch

Cavanaugh Gulch

Gulch Five

Sk
id

Gu
lch

South Fork Greenwood Creek

North Fork Alder Creek

Gulch
O ne

Nu
rse

y G
ulc

h

South Branch North Fork Navarro River

Surrender Creek

Gulch Nine

Gulch Seven

Jo
hn

son Creek

Gulch Two

Larmer Gulch

Cowshed Gulch

·|}þ1
P a c i f i c

O
c ean

Elk

Navarro

°0.5 0 0.5 10.25
Miles

Area A

Area B

Albion Little River FPD

Comptche CSD

Anderson Valley CSD

Redwood Coast FPD

Note: This map is not a survey product.

Elk Community
Services District
Source: This map was prepared by the Mendocino County Department of
             Information Services GIS Program, August 2017.

Elk Community
Services District

Highways
Roads
Streams

Elk CSD

Adjacent Districts with Fire Prostection Services
Parcels

(The existing Elk CSD SOI is coterminous with iits current CSD boundary)
Proposed additions to the Elk CSD SOI

·|}þ1

·|}þ128

10/2/17 Packet Page35 of 58



 

Chapter 1 – Elk Community Services District        Page 1-4   

1.2.3 OUT-OF-AREA SERVICES 

The Elk Community Service District does not provide services outside its district boundary to other 

agencies by contract, but does maintain Mutual Aid Agreements with the neighboring fire districts of 

Mendocino Fire Protection District, Albion-Little River Fire Protection District, Comptche Community 

Services District, Redwood Coast Fire Protection District, and Anderson Valley Community Services 

District. Additionally it maintains an Agreement with the California Department of Forestry and Fire 

Protection (CALFIRE) for wildland fire incidents. Similar to all fire districts and EMS providers within the 

County, the ECSD also responds to calls outside the District boundary as needed and as dispatched.  

1.2.4 AREAS OF INTEREST 

Two areas of interest have been identified by the District for inclusion in the SOI, and eventually the 

District boundaries (Figure 1-1). The parcels are located south of the Navarro River and directly adjacent 

to the District’s boundaries. Per the District, the parcels are only accessible from the ECSD side of the river, 

with the closest responder being the ECSD. 

 

Area A: The area consists of 10 parcels and is located off of Cameron Road, directly adjacent to the 

northern boundary. From property assessments it appears that one of the ten parcels is currently 

developed. 

129-070-01 

129-070-02 

129-070-03 

129-070-04 

129-070-05 

        129-070-06 (developed) 

129-070-07 

129-070-08 

129-070-10 

129-070-11 

 

Area B: The area consists of three parcels with access via private roads off of Philo-Greenwood Road. This 

area also is directly adjacent to the northern boundary. From property assessments, all three parcels are 

developed. 

130-220-02 

130-220-03 

130-220-04 

1.2.5 MSR UPDATE 

The MSR information and associated determinations prepared for the District in 2016 remain accurate, 

with a few updates as follows, and serve as a reliable basis for the SOI Determinations contained in this 

report.  

ACCOUNTABILITY AND GOVERNANCE 

Since the 2016 MSR, ECSD has established a new and comprehensive website (http://www.elkcsd.org), 

and now keeps updated posts of its meeting agendas and minutes, budget and financial information, 

and rules and regulations. 

FINANCIAL UPDATE 

The following table summarizes annual financial reporting by the District to the State Controller’s Office 

for Fiscal Year 2012-2013 through 2014-2015. The District’s financial planning efforts include an annually 

adopted budget and a biennial audited financial statement. Capital improvement needs are generally 

10/2/17 Packet Page36 of 58

http://www.elkcsd.org/


 

Chapter 1 – Elk Community Services District        Page 1-5   

planned in the budget. The District’s most recent audit was for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 and was prepared 

by Rick Bowers, CPA. 

 

Table 1-1 Elk Community Services District Financial Summary 

  FY 12-13 FY 13-14 FY 14-15 

Revenues   

Property Tax $33,690 $38,883 $36,774 

Property Assessments  $25,654 $25,773 $34,222 

Charges for Services $57,800 $79,070 $3,672 

Property Owner Contributions $10,450 $39,005 $4,128 

Interest Income  $185 $187 $170 

Other Government Funds  $360 $416 $410 

Miscellaneous Revenues  $0 $2,272 $36 

Total Income  $128,139 $185,606 $79,412 

Expenses   

Salaries & Employee Benefits  $0 $0 $0 

Debt Service  $4,023 $16,159 $16,091 

Service & Supplies  $94,983 $96,188 $50,061 

Other Expenditures $0 $0 $0 

Fixed Assets $17,034 $131,320 $21,229 

Total Expenses $116,040 $243,667 $87,381 

Net Income/Loss $12,099 $13,713 -$7,969 

Source: State Controller Special Districts Annual Financial Reports 

https://districts.bythenumbers.sco.ca.gov/. Accessed September 2017. 

In 2017, the County of Mendocino disbursed a share of Proposition 172 funds to eligible fire agencies 

within the County. The formula for funding allocations was developed by the Mendocino County 

Association of Fire Districts and incorporates a minimum distribution per district, plus a population-based 

proportional allocation. The ECSD received approximately $9,300 in FY 2016-17 and anticipates the same 

amount in FY 2017-18. Future disbursements are unknown at this time. 

SUMMARY OF MSR DETERMINATIONS 

The following table summarizes the MSR Determinations contained in the 2016 MSR.  

Table 2-2 Summary of MSR Determinations 

Growth and Population Projections 

1. There are approximately 450 residents within the Elk Community Services District boundary, 
based on District estimates and according to the 2010 Census demographic profile based on 

zip codes. 
2. The population of the District has not increased over the past few years, and is not expected 

to increase significantly in the foreseeable future. 

10/2/17 Packet Page37 of 58

https://districts.bythenumbers.sco.ca.gov/#!/year/default


 

Chapter 1 – Elk Community Services District        Page 1-6   

Location and Characteristics of any Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities Within or 

Contiguous to the Sphere Of Influence 

3. The community of Elk, as well as the surrounding areas, qualify as a Disadvantaged 
Unincorporated Community (DUC). Any future annexations to the District will require 
consideration of any DUC in proximity to the annexation area.  

4. For ECSD, structural fire protection is provided by the District and is considered to be 
satisfactory. The District does not provide water or sewer services, and is therefore not 
responsible for assuring that these services are adequately provided to the community. 

Present and Planned Capacity of Public Facilities and Adequacy of Public Services, Including 
Infrastructure Needs and Deficiencies 

5. The District’s current facilities are inadequate and are operating at capacity. The Main Station 
needs to be replaced. It does not even provide restroom or hand washing facilities. A 50 year 
old Type I structure engine needs to be replaced. Much equipment is used ‘hand me down’ 
from other agencies and should be replaced with up-to-date units (e.g., breather equipment).  

6. The Fire Department is experiencing a declining capacity to adequately serve current demand 
within the 57-square mile District boundary, and to assist adjoining fire districts through mutual 
aid.  

7. Increased requirements for training are becoming more difficult for volunteer firefighters and 
emergency responders to meet.  

8. Water supply for firefighting is limited in the outlying areas of the District. Additional water 
tanks at strategic locations throughout the District would be beneficial.  

9. Existing garage/barn structures utilized to house fire apparatus need to be replaced. 

Financial Ability of Agency to Provide Services 

10. ECSD reported that current funding levels are inadequate to meet current and future fire 
protection and emergency medical service’s needs. 

Status and Opportunities for Shared Facilities 

11. The District collaborates with other fire service providers through state and county mutual aid 
agreements.  

Accountability for Community Services, Including Governmental Structure and Operational 
Efficiencies 

12. ECSD is governed by an elected five-person Board of Directors. Elk is a small community, but its 
citizens are engaged in ECSD operations as demonstrated in the 2013 election cycle when five 
candidates ran for three seats. The District should continue efforts to identify more than one 
candidate for each Board position so that voters within the District will be afforded an 
opportunity to vote.  

13. A community website exists. However, the District and the Volunteer Fire Department do not 
provide all necessary information. Improving the District section of the website to include 
agendas, minutes, budgets, and audits would provide better transparency. The Fire 
Department likewise can provide more statistical information, rules and regulations, and fire 
prevention material.  

14. The District maintains a community presence at its Main Fire Station, where it operates in 
conjunction with the Greenwood Community Center. A new directional sign at the driveway 
entrance from State Route 1 identifying the fire station would be helpful.  

15. The agency demonstrated accountability in its cooperation with Mendocino LAFCo information 
requests. 

Source: Multi-District Fire Protection Services Municipal Service Review, April 2016.  

10/2/17 Packet Page38 of 58



 

Chapter 1 – Elk Community Services District        Page 1-7   

The following updated information has been provided by the District related to the above MSR 

Determinations. 

MSR Determination 1 
There are approximately 400 residents within the Elk Community Services District boundary, based on 

District estimates and according to the 2010 Census demographic profile based on zip codes. 
 
MSR Determination 4 
For ECSD, structural fire protection is provided by the District and varies between poor and satisfactory, 
depending on the day of week and time of day. The District does not provide water or sewer services, 
and is therefore not responsible for assuring that these services are adequately provided to the 
community. 
 
MSR Determination 5 
The District’s current facilities are inadequate and are operating at capacity. The Main Station needs to 
be replaced. It does not even provide restroom or hand washing facilities. A 52 year old Type I structure 
engine needs to be replaced. Much equipment is used ‘hand me down’ from other agencies and should 
be replaced with up-to-date units (e.g., breather equipment).  
 
MSR Determination 6 
The Fire Department is experiencing a declining capacity to adequately serve current demand within the 
57-square mile District boundary, and to assist adjoining fire districts through mutual aid. Recently, due 
to a shortage of trained personnel, the District had to halt ambulance responses for several months. 
 
MSR Determination 10 
The District has recently received approximately $9,300 from Proposition 172 funds from the County of 
Mendocino; the same share is anticipated next year. Future disbursements are unknown. 
 
MSR Determination 11 
Due to declining volunteer availability, the District is no longer able to participate in out-of-county 
California Fire Assistance Agreement (CFAA) strike team deployments. In the past, this has been a 
significant source of funding assistance to the District. 
 
MSR Determination 12 
ECSD is governed by an elected five-person Board of Directors. Elk is a small community, and it is typically 
difficult to fill board positions. The District should continue efforts to identify more than one candidate 
for each Board position so that voters within the District will be afforded an opportunity to vote.  
 
MSR Determination 13 
The ECSD has established a new and comprehensive website (http://www.elkcsd.org), which includes 
updated posts of its meeting agendas and minutes, budget and financial information, and rules and 
regulations. 
 
MSR Determination 14  
The District maintains a community presence at its Main Fire Station, where it operates in conjunction 
with the Greenwood Community Center.  
 

10/2/17 Packet Page39 of 58

http://www.elkcsd.org/


 

Chapter 1 – Elk Community Services District        Page 1-8   

1.2.6 SOI RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Commission affirm an SOI for ECSD that is coterminous with the District 

boundary with the inclusion of Areas A and B, which comprise 13 parcels in total. The following statements 

have been prepared in support of this recommendation. 

1.2.6.1 Present and planned land uses in the area 

The District’s boundary area is approximately 57 square miles. The District contains a variety of land uses 

including rural residential and ‘ranchettes,’ and limited commercial development in the village of Elk along 

with tourist-oriented businesses. Row crops and grazing land comprise agricultural land uses along the 

Coast, while large tracts of forest and range land are predominately in the District’s easterly areas. The 

land use authority for land within the District is the County of Mendocino. Mendocino County has land 

use authority over privately-owned lands within the District boundary and makes land-use decisions based 

on the County General Plan and Zoning Regulations. 

1.2.6.2 Present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area 

Operating under the Elk Community Services District authority, the Elk Volunteer Fire Department 
provides leadership and essential personnel for structural fire protection, wildland fire protection, 
emergency medical response, vehicle rescue and extrication, Basic Life Support (BLS) ambulance service, 
fire prevention, and public safety services. The EVFD remains an all-volunteer, tax exempt organization.  
 
The District serves approximately 400 full-time residents within the District, with additional visitor 
populations of up to 1,500 per day, depending on the season. Annual events such as the ‘Great Day in Elk’ 
can draw an additional 1,500 visitors. Little growth within the District is anticipated within the next few 
years due to existing land use patterns. Although no new development is expected, any that does is likely 
to occur within the Highway 1 Corridor. 
 
Areas A and B, consisting of 13 parcels adjacent to the District’s northern boundary, are best served by 
the ECSD. Due to their location south of the Navarro River, the ECSD is the first responder into the area. 

1.2.6.3 Present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that the agency 

provides or is authorized to provide 

As determined in the 2016 MSR prepared for Elk Community Services District, the ECSD has an ISO rating 
of 6 within the village of Elk, and a rating of 6X in the outlying areas of the District. The ECSD reported that 
its main station, located at 6129 South Highway 1 in Elk, is in poor condition and operating at capacity. 
The Main Station is undersized and is inadequate to meet the needs of the Fire Department. The minor 
garage or barn structures housing apparatus need to be replaced. 

The ECSD maintains and operates two Rescue Engines, one BLS ambulance, one Type 1 Structure Engine, 
two Type 3 Wildland Fire Engines, and two Water Tenders (1,500 and 2,000-gallon capacity). Within the 
village of Elk, water for firefighting is supplied by a hydrant system and two water storage tanks (80,000 
gallons and 20,000 gallons) as part of the Elk County Water District water system. In the outlying areas, 
water for fire protection is provided by on-board tanks on each engine, the water tenders, and eight 5,000 
gallon water tanks located on ridge tops, and individual private water storage tanks ranging in size from 
2,500 gallons to 10,000 gallons.  

The District is in the process of replacing its older apparatus, and in 2013 it replaced a 42 year old water 
tender with a new 2011 Peterbilt Model 337. The District’s single Type I structure fire engine is 52 years 
old and urgently needs to be replaced. The ECSD reported that it is experiencing a declining capacity to 

10/2/17 Packet Page40 of 58



 

Chapter 1 – Elk Community Services District        Page 1-9   

provide services to its current service area, and to assist other fire departments through mutual aid. This 
decline is due to an aging group of volunteer firefighters and difficulty in recruiting younger replacements. 
New training requirements for both firefighters and emergency medical responders is further straining 
the reliance on an all-volunteer staffing.   

1.2.6.4 Existence of social or economic communities of interest in the area if the 

Commission determines that they are relevant to the agency 

No social or economic communities of interest have been identified in the immediate vicinity of the 

District in the preparation of this SOI Update that should be included in the District boundary. 

1.2.6.5 Present and Probable need for Public Facilities and Services of Disadvantaged 

Unincorporated Communities 

The unincorporated community of Elk is the population center within the District. Elk does qualify as a 

DUC because the median household income is less than 80% of the State median household income of 

$61,632. Based on 2010 Census demographic information related to zip codes, Elk has a median 

household income of $32,431 

The District does not provide water or sewer services, and is therefore not responsible for ensuring that 

these services are adequately provided to the community.  

10/2/17 Packet Page41 of 58



 

Chapter 2 - References          Page 2-1   

2 REFERENCES 

Bowers, Rick, CPA. 2014. Elk Community Services District Basic Financial Statements and Required 

Supplemental Information, June 30, 2014 and 2013.  

 

California State Controller. 2017. Special Districts Annual Financial Reports. Available online at: 

https://districts.bythenumbers.sco.ca.gov/#!/year/default. Accessed September 12, 2017. 

 

Elk Community Services District (ECSD). 2017. District Response to Information Request from the Local 

Agency Formation Commission of Mendocino County in preparation for the 2017 Sphere of 

Influence Update. 3-pages. Available at LAFCo’s office upon request. 

 

Mendocino County Fire Chief’s Association. 2015. Mendocino County Community Wildfire Protection 

Plan. Available online: 

https://www.co.mendocino.ca.us/bos/meetings/28658/28666/28667/28988/29050/ProtectionPlan

29050.pdf. Accessed June 28, 2017. 

 

Mendocino LAFCo. April 4, 2016. Multi-District Fire Protection Services Municipal Service Review.  

Available online at: http://mendolafco.org/msr/Final%20Fire%20MSR%20for%20Hearing%2004-04-

16.pdf. Accessed June 28, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10/2/17 Packet Page42 of 58

https://districts.bythenumbers.sco.ca.gov/#!/year/default
https://www.co.mendocino.ca.us/bos/meetings/28658/28666/28667/28988/29050/ProtectionPlan29050.pdf
https://www.co.mendocino.ca.us/bos/meetings/28658/28666/28667/28988/29050/ProtectionPlan29050.pdf
http://mendolafco.org/msr/Final%20Fire%20MSR%20for%20Hearing%2004-04-16.pdf
http://mendolafco.org/msr/Final%20Fire%20MSR%20for%20Hearing%2004-04-16.pdf


 

Chapter 3 - Acknowledgements         Page 3-1   

3 ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

3.1 ASSISTANCE AND SUPPORT 
This Sphere of Influence Update could not have been completed without the assistance and support 

from the following organizations and individuals. 

 

LAFCo Staff 

Uma Hinman, Executive Officer 

Larkyn Feiler, Analyst 

Beth Salomone, Commission Clerk 

Elk Community Services District Ben MacMillan, Board President ECSD  

Craig Mitchell, Fire Chief EVFD 

 

 

 

10/2/17 Packet Page43 of 58



 

Chapter 4 - Appendices          Page 4-1 

4 APPENDICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank] 

10/2/17 Packet Page44 of 58



Agenda Item No. 7a 

 
MENDOCINO 

Local Agency Formation Commission 

 

Staff Report 

DATE:  October 2, 2017 

TO:  Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission 

FROM: Uma Hinman, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Draft 2017 Legislative Platform  
 
 

 
BACKGROUND 

Upon recommendation of the Policies and Procedures Committee, the Commission considered and 
adopted the following policy at its August 7, 2017 meeting: 
 
Legislative Policy 

1) The Commission shall consider adoption of a legislative platform annually, at the first 
regular Commission meeting following the CALAFCO publication of their legislative 
platform, or as needed.  

2) In situations when proposed legislation affecting LAFCo cannot be considered by the full 
Commission due to timing, the Executive Officer is authorized to provide written or e-mail 
correspondence regarding the Commission's position if the position is consistent with the 
adopted legislative platform of the Commission.  

3) The Chair (or Vice Chair in the absence of the Chair) shall review and either sign the letter 
or approve the e-mail prior to it being submitted.  

4) After submission, the Executive Officer shall forward the signed letter or approved e-mail to 
the Commission.  

5) The correspondence will be included on the consent calendar of the next available 
Commission agenda for ratification.  

 
Item 1 of the policy requires the Commission to adopt a legislative platform each year, which will be 
based upon CALAFCO’s legislative platform. Commissioner McNerlin reviewed the 2017 
CALAFCO legislative platform and provided suggestions on revising the platform for Mendocino 
LAFCo. The Policies & Procedures Committee unanimously recommends the attached Draft 
Legislative Platform to the Commission for consideration. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

The Policies and Procedures Committee recommends the attached Legislative Platform to the 
Commission for approval; staff recommends adoption of the attached resolution.  
 
Attachments: 

(1) Draft 2017 Legislative Platform 

10/2/17 Packet Page45 of 58



 

Mendocino LAFCo  1 

2017 Legislative Platform 

Mendocino LAFCo 
DRAFT 2017 Legislative Platform 

 
1     LAFCo Purpose and Authority 
1.1 Support legislation which enhances LAFCo authority and powers to carry out the legislative 

findings and authority in Government Code Section 56000 et seq., and oppose legislation 
which diminishes LAFCo authority. 

1.2 Support authority for each LAFCo to establish local policies to apply Government Code 
Section 56000 et. seq. based on local needs and conditions, and oppose any limitations to 
that authority. 

1.3 Oppose additional LAFCo responsibilities which require expansion of current local funding 
sources. Oppose unrelated responsibilities which dilute LAFCo ability to meet its primary 
mission. 

1.4 Support alignment of responsibilities and authority of LAFCo and reginal agencies which 
may have overlapping responsibilities in orderly growth, preservation, and service delivery, 
and oppose legislation or polies which create conflicts or hamper with those responsibilities. 

1.5 Oppose grants of special status to any individual agency or proposal to circumvent the 
LAFCo process. 

1.6 Support individual commissioner responsibility that allows each commissioner to 
independently vote his or her conscience on issues affecting his or her own jurisdiction. 

2 LAFCo Organization 
2.1 Support the independence of LAFCo from local agencies. 
2.2 Oppose the re-composition of any LAFCo to create special seats and recognize the 

importance of balanced representation provided by cities, the county, the public, and special 
districts in advancing the public interest. 

2.3 Support representation for special districts on all LAFCos in counties with independent 
districts and oppose removal of special districts from any LAFCo. 

2.4 Support communication and collaborative decision-making among neighboring LAFCos 
when growth pressures and multicounty agencies extend beyond a LAFCo’s boundaries. 

3 Agriculture and Open Space Protection 
3.1 Support legislation which clarifies LAFCo authority to identify, encourage, and ensure the 

preservation of agricultural and open space lands. 
3.2 Encourage a consistent definition of agricultural and open space lands. 
3.3 Support polies which encourage cities, counties, and special districts to direct development 

away from prime agricultural lands. 
3.4 Support polies and tools which protect prime agricultural and open space lands. 
3.5 Support the continuance of the Williamson Act and restoration of program funding through 

State subvention payments. 
4 Orderly Growth 
4.1 Support the recognition and use of spheres of influence as a management tool to provide 

better planning of growth and development, and to preserve agricultural, and open space 
lands. 

4.2 Support recognition f LAFCo spheres of influence by other agencies involved in 
determining and developing long-term growth and infrastructure plans. 

4.3 Support orderly boundaries of local agencies and the elimination of islands within the 
boundaries of agencies. 

10/2/17 Packet Page46 of 58



 

Mendocino LAFCo  2 

2017 Legislative Platform 

4.4 Support communication among cities, counties, and special districts through a collaborative 
process that resolves service, housing, land use, and fiscal issues prior to application to 
LAFCo. 

4.5 Support the cooperation between counties, and cities, and special districts on decision 
related to development within the city’s designated sphere of influence. 

5 Service Delivery and Local Agency Effectiveness 
5.1 Support the use of LAFCo resources to review Regional Transportation Plans, including 

sustainable communities strategies and other growth plans to ensure reliable services, orderly 
growth, sustainable communities, and conformity with LAFCo’s legislative mandates. 
Support efforts that enhance meaningful collaboration between LAFCos and regional 
planning agencies. 

5.2 Support LAFCo authority as the preferred method of local governance. Support the 
availability of LAFCo tools which provide communities with local governance and efficient 
service delivery options, including the authority to impose conditions that assure a proposal’s 
conformity with LAFCo’s legislative mandates. 

5.3 Support the creation or reorganization of local governments in a deliberative, open process 
which will fairly evaluate the proposed new or successor agency’s long-term financial 
viability, governance structure, and ability to efficiently deliver proposed services. 

5.4 Support the availability of tools for LAFCo to insure equitable distribution of revenues to 
local government agencies consistent with their service delivery responsibilities. 

5.5 Support collaborative efforts among agencies and LAFCos that encourage opportunities for 
sharing of services, staff, and facilities to provide more efficient and cost effective services. 
Support legislation which provides LAFCo with additional opportunities to encourage 
shared services. 

 
2017 Legislative Priorities 

 
Primary Issues 

Authority of LAFCo 
Support legislation that maintains or enhances LAFCo’s authority to condition proposals to address 
any or all financial, growth, service delivery, and agricultural and open space preservation issues. 
Support legislation that maintains or enhances LAFCo’s ability to make decisions regarding 
boundaries and formations, as well as to enact recommendations related to the delivery of services 
and the agencies providing them, including consolidations, reorganizations, or dissolutions. 
 
Agriculture and Open Space Protection 
Support policies, programs, and legislation that recognize LAFCo’s mission to protect and mitigate 
the loss of prime agricultural and open space lands and that encourage other agencies to coordinate 
with local LAFCos on land preservation and orderly growth. Support efforts that encourage the 
creation of habitat conservation plans. 
 
Water Availability 
Support polices, programs, and legislation that promote an integrated approach to water availability 
and management. Promote adequate water supplies and infrastructure planning for current and 
planned growth as well as to support the sustainability of agriculture. Support policies that assist 
LAFCo in obtaining accurate and reliable water supply information to evaluate current and 
cumulative water demands for service expansions and boundary changes including impacts of 

10/2/17 Packet Page47 of 58



 

Mendocino LAFCo  3 

2017 Legislative Platform 

expanding water company service areas on orderly growth, and the impacts of consolidation or 
dissolution of water companies providing services. 
 
Viability of Local Services 
Support legislation that maintains or enhances LAFCo’s ability to review and act to determine the 
efficient and sustainable delivery of services and the financial viability of agencies providing those 
services to meet current and future needs including those identified in regional planning efforts such 
as sustainable communities strategies. Support legislation which provides LAFCo and local 
communities with options for local governance and service delivery to ensure efficient, effective, and 
quality service delivery. Support efforts which provide tools to local agencies to address aging 
infrastructure, fiscal challenges and the maintenance of services. 
 
Issues of Interest 

Housing 
Provision of territory and services to support housing plans consistent with regional land use plans 
and LAFCo policies. 
 
Transportation 
Effects of Regional Transportation Plans and expansion of transportation systems on future urban 
growth and service delivery needs, and the ability of local agencies to provide those services. 
 
Flood Control 
The ability and effectiveness of local agencies to maintain and improve levees and protect current 
infrastructure. Carefully consider the value of uninhabited territory, and the impact to public safety 
of proposed annexation to urban areas of uninhabited territory which is at risk for flooding. Support 
legislation that includes assessment for agency viability in decisions involving new funds for levee 
repair and maintenance. Support efforts that encourage the creation of habitat conservation plans. 
 
Adequate Municipal Services in Inhabited Territory 
Expedited processes for inhabited annexations should be consistent with LAFCo law and be fiscally 
viable. To promote environmental justice for undeserved inhabited communities, funding sources 
should be identified for extension of municipal services, including options for annexation of 
contiguous disadvantaged unincorporated communities. Promote the delivery of adequate, 
sustainable, efficient, and effective levels of service through periodic updates of Municipal Service 
Reviews, Spheres of Influence, and other studies. 
 

10/2/17 Packet Page48 of 58



Agenda Item No. 7b 

 
MENDOCINO 

Local Agency Formation Commission 

 

Staff Report 

DATE:  October 2, 2017 

TO:  LAFCo Policies & Procedures Committee 

FROM: Uma Hinman, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Property Tax Exchange Agreement Policy Development 

 

 
Background 

During its July 31st and September 14th meetings, the Policies and Procedures Committee discussed 
and reviewed a draft policy change to address the Commission’s direction to review the tax share 
agreement process for applications. The Committee directed staff to meet with staff from the 
County CEO’s office to discuss coordination between LAFCo and the County for applications that 
trigger the tax agreement requirement.  
 
EO Hinman met with County Executive Office staff on August 16th to discuss the process of tax 
share negotiations. A flowchart of LAFCo’s annexation process and copies of the CKH sections 
that trigger the Revenue and Tax Code Section 99 tax share negotiations were provided to County 
staff. LAFCo’s application process was reviewed and discussed, emphasizing that application 
processing cannot move forward until a tax share agreement is reached and resolutions from both 
the County and the affected district(s) are submitted. EO Hinman noted that while LAFCo has no 
authority over the tax share negotiation process, LAFCo staff could help facilitate the process and 
communication.  
 
County staff indicated that tax sharing would be most appropriate in cases where like services were 
being transferred. The County’s process is to schedule the negotiation for the BOS once the 
Assessor and Auditor have prepared the breakdown of tax apportionments.  
 
The County noted that the earlier in the process they receive notification of the application and tax 
share negotiation requirement, the better. It was discussed that LAFCo staff could send an 
informative email to the CEO at the pre-application stage, if appropriate. Additionally, LAFCo staff 
have developed form letters that will be sent to the CEO and Auditor’s Office upon receipt of 
(otherwise) complete applications. 
 
Mendocino LAFCo Policies and Procedures includes the following policy regarding applications 
(existing language) (Chapter 10, Section 4. Application Requirements) 

Application Materials. Applications to the Commission must contain all the information 
and materials required by the CKH Act (G.C. §56652 and 56653), including a plan for 
services, as well as the applicable fees or deposit toward fees as specified by the LAFCo Fee 
Schedule. Except when the Commission is the Lead Agency pursuant to the CEQA (as 

10/2/17 Packet Page49 of 58



defined in Public Resources Code §21067), an application must also contain complete 
documentation of the Lead Agency’s environmental determination. No application for a 
change of organization or reorganization will be deemed complete and scheduled for hearing 
unless Revenue and Taxation Code (Section 99) requirements for tax apportionment 
agreements have been satisfied. 

The Policies and Procedures Committee is recommending revisions to the last sentence of the 
existing Application Materials policy to clarify the tax exchange process, as follows (new language 
underlined): 

…No application for a change of organization or reorganization will be deemed complete 
and scheduled for public hearing until proof of a property tax exchange agreement, in the 
form of adopted resolutions, is provided by the local agencies whose service area or service 
responsibility will be altered by the proposed jurisdictional change pursuant to Revenue and 
Taxation Code Section 99(b)(6). To facilitate the tax exchange process, upon receipt of 
applications requiring the process, LAFCo staff will provide notification of the application to 
the County CEO, Auditor and Assessor, with a copy also provided to the Supervisor in 
whose district the change of organization is occurring. 

Additionally, attached are two template letters for providing official notice that an application has 
been filed with LAFCo and outlining key parts of the property tax exchange agreement process per 
RTC § 99. The first letter is a Notice of Filing to the Mendocino County Assessor and Auditor-
Controller required per RTC § 99(b). Though not required by state law, the second letter is a Notice 
of Initiating Property Tax Exchange Agreement Process to the Mendocino County CEO and 
District Supervisor. 

Recommended Action:  

The Policies and Procedures Committee recommends the following policy to the Commission for 
approval; staff recommends adoption of the attached resolution. The draft policy has been reviewed 
and approved by legal counsel. 
 
Chapter 10, Section 4. Application Requirements (full policy language) 

Application Materials. Applications to the Commission must contain all the information 
and materials required by the CKH Act (G.C. §56652 and 56653), including a plan for 
services, as well as the applicable fees or deposit toward fees as specified by the LAFCo Fee 
Schedule. Except when the Commission is the Lead Agency pursuant to the CEQA (as 
defined in Public Resources Code §21067), an application must also contain complete 
documentation of the Lead Agency’s environmental determination. No application for a 
change of organization or reorganization will be deemed complete and scheduled for public 
hearing until proof of a property tax exchange agreement, in the form of adopted 
resolutions, is provided by the local agencies whose service area or service responsibility will 
be altered by the proposed jurisdictional change pursuant to Revenue and Taxation Code 
Section 99(b)(6). To facilitate the tax exchange process, upon receipt of applications 
requiring the process, LAFCo staff will provide notification of the application to the County 
CEO, Auditor and Assessor, with a copy also provided to the Supervisor in whose district 
the change of organization is occurring. 

 
Attachments:  
(1) Notice of Filing template letter 
(2) Notice to County CEO and District Supervisor template letter 
(3) Resolution No. 2017-18-01 

10/2/17 Packet Page50 of 58



M E N D O C I N O  Local Agency Formation Commission 
  

Ukiah Valley Conference Center ◊    200 South School Street ◊    Ukiah, California  95482 

Telephone:  707-463-4470 Fax:  707-462-2088 E-mail:  eo@mendolafco.org  Web:  www.mendolafco.org 
 

 

______ (date) 

TO:  Mendocino County Assessor and Auditor-Controller 

RE: Notice of Filing per RTC § 99(b) 

 

This Notice of Filing is required per Revenue and Taxation Code (RTC) Section 99(b). On _______ 
(date), LAFCo received an application from _______ (local agency) proposing a jurisdictional 
change as detailed below (LAFCo File No. ______): 

_______ (project scope) 

Per RTC § 99, when a jurisdictional change alters the service area or service responsibility of one 
or more local agencies, the allocation of property tax revenue is adjusted according to the 
property tax exchange agreement reached between the affected local agencies. The affected local 
agencies cannot commence the negotiation process and develop a property tax exchange 
agreement until information is provided as follows: 

 Within 30 days of this Notice of Filing, the Assessor shall provide assessed valuations and 
tax rate area information to the Auditor per RTC § 99(b)(1)(A). 

 Within 45 days of this Notice of Filing, the Auditor shall notify the governing body of each 
affected local agency regarding the estimated property tax revenue subject to a 
negotiated exchange per RTC § 99(b)(3). 

To assist in preparing the above information, attached is a list of the Assessor Parcel Numbers 
for the proposed jurisdictional change. In addition, the following list identifies each local agency 
whose service area or responsibility will be altered by the proposed jurisdictional change: 

 ______ 

Per RTC § 99(b)(6), LAFCo cannot deem this application complete and move forward with 
scheduling a public hearing until we receive proof of a property tax exchange agreement, in the 
form of adopted resolutions, from the affected local agencies. We appreciate your efforts to 
provide the necessary information in a timely manner in order for the affected local agencies to 
commence the negotiation process. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you need additional 
information or have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Uma Hinman 
Executive Officer 
Mendocino LAFCo 

10/2/17 Packet Page51 of 58

mailto:eo@mendolafco.org


M E N D O C I N O  Local Agency Formation Commission 
  

Ukiah Valley Conference Center ◊    200 South School Street ◊    Ukiah, California  95482 

Telephone:  707-463-4470 Fax:  707-462-2088 E-mail:  eo@mendolafco.org  Web:  www.mendolafco.org 
 
 

 

______ (date) 

TO:  Mendocino County CEO and District Supervisor 

RE: Notice of Initiating Property Tax Exchange Agreement Process 

Notice is hereby provided that a property tax exchange agreement process has been initiated per 
Revenue and Taxation Code (RTC) Section 99. LAFCo issued a Notice of Filing to the Mendocino 
County Assessor and Auditor-Controller on _______ (date) per RTC § 99(b) based on an 
application received from _______ (local agency) proposing a jurisdictional change as detailed 
below (LAFCo File No. ______): 

_______ (project scope) 

Per RTC § 99, when a jurisdictional change alters the service area or service responsibility of one 
or more local agencies, the allocation of property tax revenue is adjusted according to the 
property tax exchange agreement reached between the affected local agencies. The affected local 
agencies cannot commence the negotiation process and develop a property tax exchange 
agreement until information is provided as follows: 

 Within 30 days of the Notice of Filing, the Assessor shall provide assessed valuations and 
tax rate area information to the Auditor per RTC § 99(b)(1)(A). 

 Within 45 days of the Notice of Filing, the Auditor shall notify the governing body of each 
affected local agency regarding the estimated property tax revenue subject to a 
negotiated exchange per RTC § 99(b)(3). 

According to RTC § 99(b)(4), the affected local agencies have 60 days from receiving the 
Auditor’s letter to negotiate and determine the amount of property tax revenue to be exchanged; 
the negotiation period may be extended to 90 days with proper notice. In the event that a 
jurisdictional change would affect one or more special districts, the Board of Supervisors shall 
negotiate on behalf of the districts per R&T 99(b)(5). 

Per RTC § 99(b)(6), LAFCo cannot deem this application complete and move forward with 
scheduling a public hearing until we receive proof of a property tax exchange agreement, in the 
form of adopted resolutions, from the affected local agencies. If tax share negotiations result in 
no agreement, please provide written notice to LAFCo that no tax share agreement was reached 
so that we may proceed with our process. If desired, LAFCo staff is available to facilitate a 
meeting between ______ (the applicant) and the County to assist in the negotiation process. Please 
do not hesitate to contact me if you need additional information or have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Uma Hinman 
Executive Officer 
Mendocino LAFCo 

10/2/17 Packet Page52 of 58

mailto:eo@mendolafco.org


LAFCo Resolution No. 17-18-02 Page 1 of 2 10-2-2017  

A RESOLUTION OF 
THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MENDOCINO COUNTY 

 

LAFCo Resolution No. 2017-18-02 
 

FINANCIAL POLICIES 
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO PERFORM SPECIFIC DUTIES 

 

WHEREAS, Local Agency Formation Commissions have been created under the provisions of 

the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000, Sections 56000 et. 

seq. of the Government Code, as independent agencies, with the power to adopt application 

processing policies, as necessary, to carry out their functions, (§56384); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Commission reviews and approves applications for reorganizations, which 

require tax share agreements between local agencies under Revenue and Taxation Code Section 

99; and  

 

WHEREAS, LAFCO has no authority over the Revenue and Taxation Code Section 99 

proceedings but requires proof of tax share agreements before scheduling a reorganization 

application for public hearing; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the Commission’s desire to improve communication and notification of the 

Revenue and Taxation Code Section 99 requirements early in an application process; and 

 

WHEREAS, this Commission held a public meeting on the proposed policy modification 

regarding application materials and at that meeting, this Commission received all oral and 

written comments with respect to the proposed policy and the report of the Executive Officer. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Local Agency Formation Commission of the County of Mendocino 

DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER as follows: 

 
Application Materials. Applications to the Commission must contain all the information 
and materials required by the CKH Act (G.C. §56652 and 56653), including a plan for 
services, as well as the applicable fees or deposit toward fees as specified by the LAFCo Fee 
Schedule. Except when the Commission is the Lead Agency pursuant to the CEQA (as 
defined in Public Resources Code §21067), an application must also contain complete 
documentation of the Lead Agency’s environmental determination. No application for a 
change of organization or reorganization will be deemed complete and scheduled for public 
hearing until proof of a property tax exchange agreement, in the form of adopted 
resolutions, is provided by the local agencies whose service area or service responsibility will 
be altered by the proposed jurisdictional change pursuant to Revenue and Taxation Code 
Section 99(b)(6). To facilitate the tax exchange process, upon receipt of applications 
requiring the process, LAFCo staff will provide notification of the application to the County 
CEO, Auditor and Assessor, with a copy also provided to the Supervisor in whose district 
the change of organization is occurring. 

 

10/2/17 Packet Page53 of 58



LAFCo Resolution No. 16-17-01 08-1-16 Page 2 of 2 

 The foregoing Resolution was passed and duly adopted at a regular meeting of the Mendocino Local 
Agency Formation Commission held on this 2nd day of October 2017, by the following vote: 

 
 

AYES:  
 
 
NOES:  
 
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
 
ABSENT:  
 

________________________ 
    GERALD WARD, Chair 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
UMA HINMAN, Executive Officer 
 

10/2/17 Packet Page54 of 58



Agenda Item No. 7c 

 
MENDOCINO 

Local Agency Formation Commission 

 

Staff Report 

DATE:  October 2, 2017 

TO:  Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission 

FROM: Uma Hinman, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Budget Adjustment Policy 

 

 
Background 

The Policies & Procedures Committee is recommending a draft policy intended to identify 
parameters for minor budget adjustments at the administrative level. The policy allows the Executive 
Officer to exceed individual budget line items not to exceed 5% of the budget line, or $3,000, 
whichever is more restrictive. The intent of this draft policy is allow limited flexibility for the 
Executive Officer to accommodate unexpected expenses in the budget without obtaining full 
Commission approval prior to the expenditure. The policy also includes a reporting requirement to 
keep the Commission informed of all overages. Mendocino LAFCo does not currently have a policy 
discussing procedures for budget adjustments. 

 
The following draft policy defines parameters for minor budget adjustments at the administrative 
level: 

Budget Adjustments 
The Commission may make adjustments to its budget at any time during the fiscal year, as it 
deems necessary. The Executive Officer may approve expenditures exceeding individual 
account budgets up to 5% of a budget line, not to exceed $3,000. Any budget exceedances will 
be reported to the Commission at the following regular meeting.  

Recommended Action:  

The Policies and Procedures Committee recommends the following policy to the Commission for 
approval; staff recommends adoption of the attached resolution. The draft policy has been reviewed 
and approved by legal counsel. 
 
Attachments to be provided at meeting:  
 
(1) Resolution No. 2017-18-03 

10/2/17 Packet Page55 of 58



LAFCo Resolution No. 17-18-03 10-2-2017  

 

A RESOLUTION OF 
THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MENDOCINO COUNTY 

 

LAFCo Resolution No. 17-18-03 
 

FINANCIAL POLICY for BUDGET ADJUSTMENT 
 

WHEREAS, Local Agency Formation Commissions have been created under the provisions of 

the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000, Sections 56000 et. 

seq. of the Government Code, as independent agencies, with the power to adopt expenditure and 

finance policies, as necessary, to carry out their functions, (§56384); and 

 

WHEREAS, the Commission adopts and manages an annual budget including revenues and 

expenditures; and  

 

WHEREAS,  the LAFCO Executive Officer is responsible for managing the day-to-day business 

of the Commission and for directing expenditures for that purpose within the guidelines 

established by the adopted budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, there is a need for the Commission to adopt written expenditure and finance 

policies for the financial operation of LAFCo; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the Commission’s desire to authorize the Executive Officer to perform specific 

financial duties; and 

 

WHEREAS, this Commission held a public meeting on the proposed policy regarding budget 

adjustments and at that meeting, this Commission received all oral and written comments with 

respect to the proposed policy and the report of the Executive Officer. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Local Agency Formation Commission of the County of Mendocino 

DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER as follows: 

 
Budget Adjustments 
The Commission may make adjustments to its budget at any time during the fiscal year, as it 
deems necessary. The Executive Officer may approve expenditures exceeding individual 
account budgets up to 5 percent of a budget line, not to exceed $3,000. Any budget 
exceedances will be reported to the Commission at the following regular meeting.  

 
 The foregoing Resolution was passed and duly adopted at a regular meeting of the Mendocino Local 
Agency Formation Commission held on this 2nd day of October 2017, by the following vote: 

 
 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSTAIN:  
ABSENT:  

________________________ 
ATTEST:            GERALD WARD, Chair 
_____________________________ 
UMA HINMAN, Executive Officer 

10/2/17 Packet Page56 of 58



Agenda Item No. 8a 

MENDOCINO 
Local Agency Formation Commission 

 

Staff Report 

DATE:  October 2, 2017 

TO:  Mendocino Local Agency Formation Commission 

FROM: Uma Hinman, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Status of Applications, Future Projects, MSR & SOI Updates 
 
 
 

ACTIVE APPLICATIONS   

There are currently two (2) active applications on file with the Commission: 

1. City of Ukiah Detachment of Ukiah Valley Sanitation District (UVSD) Served Areas 
The City of Ukiah was notified in December 2014 that their detachment application was incomplete 
pending submittal of a Plan for Services and property tax exchange agreement. 

2. Pre-Application Request Millview County Water District Annexation 
A pre-application request and deposit was submitted by Millview County Water District on August 
17 to receive staff feedback regarding application requirements for annexation of an area located 
outside the District boundaries but within its sphere of influence. The proposal includes the Nicolls 
annexation properties as well.  
 
FUTURE PROJECTS:   

There are four (4) potential project proposals that have been brought to LAFCo’s attention: 

1. Anderson Valley CSD Proposed Activation of Latent Powers to Provide Water and Sewer 
Services  

Staff has been corresponding with AVCSD regarding application requirements and timing with 
grant needs. AVCSD is in the process of preparing an EIR; EO Hinman has corresponded with 
District to be included in EIR process. 
 

2. Calpella CWD Proposed Annexation 
Potential annexation of the Central Avenue Area, which has been receiving water services since 
2000. The area has been identified for future annexation in the recent SOI Plan. This application will 
be unnecessary upon consolidation of the five water districts. 
 

3. Proposed Consolidation of Five Water Districts in the Ukiah Valley area 
Potential consolidation of five water districts in the Ukiah valley area: Calpella CWD, Millview 
CWD, Willow CWD, Redwood Valley CWD, and Russian River Flood Control. LAFCo sent a letter 
of support encouraging state assistance with the water rights applications to Governor Brown in 
May 2017. EO Hinman has spoken with the SWRCB staff regarding the consolidation; LAFCo has 
been encouraged to participate in the process early on with the goal of processing concurrent 
applications. 
 

( Continued…) 

10/2/17 Packet Page57 of 58



(Page 2) 

 
4. Annexation of Industrial Property into Willits 

Correspondence with City and a developer wishing to annex industrial properties into the City of 
Willits. 
 
MSR & SOI UPDATES:   

The following provides an update on the 2017/2018 Work Plan: 
 

M
S

R
 

S
O

I MSR/SOI Start Date Targeted 
Workshop 

Date 

Status 

 X Fire Districts (14) Varies Varies Three SOI updates have been set for 
workshop on 6/5/17, 8/7/17, and 
10/2/17; staff continues to follow up 
with districts to obtain information. 
SOI updates will be brought to 
workshop for individual districts as 
they are ready. 

X X City of Fort Bragg 1/6/17 8/7/17 Workshop held 8/7/17. Public 
hearing scheduled for 11/6/17 

 X City of Willits 11/10/16 12/4/17 In progress; waiting for City to 
provide information on SOI 

X X Brooktrails CSD 7/17/17 12/4/17 Draft MSR/SOI in process; RFI 
response due 10/18/17 

X X Redwood Coast FPD 6/1/17  RFI response received 

X X Fort Bragg Rural FPD   Pending 

X X Covelo CSD   Pending 

X X Mendocino City CSD   Pending 

X X Mendocino Coast RPD   Pending 

  Mutual Water 
Companies 

8/21/17  Profiles only; research initiated 

 

10/2/17 Packet Page58 of 58




